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2009 Tour of Homes

Saturday, September 19, 2009
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Tips on Touring

Parking is available at the German American Heritage Center and along the
streets of the neighborhood. Driving north, the most direct access to the tour
area is via Gaines or Ripley. Driving south, via Gaines or Harrison.

Restrooms
% The German American Heritage Center 712 W. 2nd Street
% The Jipp Home & Grocery 730/732 Gaines Street

A Walk through the Gold Coast

We welcome visitors to our neighborhood every season of the year. Free
Walking Tour Brochures featuring over 80 homes are available at all stops on
today’s tour.
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Homes on Tour Today

The five neighborhood homes you are touring today span 60 years that
included some of the most dynamic decades in Davenport’s history. During
those years, Davenport grew from a village of 10,000 to a city of more than
55,000. Three of the homes’ builders were German immigrants; the other two
were second generation sons of such men and women.

Also on tour are two buildings on the periphery of the neighborhood. One was
built for a man whose work with a railroad company brought him west as the
first rails were being laid through the state. The other served as temporary
housing for many new Davenport immigrants.

Imagine the impact when a city doubles its population in 10 years, as was the
case in Davenport between 1860 and 18707 New buildings, new
neighborhoods, new industry, large and small, must emerge to meeting the
needs of the growing community. Today’s homes are not among the grandest in
the Gold Coast. But their hard-working owners ran grocery stores, bakeries,
and tailoring and leather tanning shops that provided the goods and services of
everyday people, are more typical of the industry that really fueled Davenport’s
great commercial machine a century and a half ago. It was this diversity, rather
than concentration on one large manufacturing entity, that allowed the city to
weather changing economic conditions.

In addition, the two National Register properties on tour also have their roots in
the city’s mid-19th Century development. The Kimball Stevenson Home was
occupied by Abel Kimball, who came west with the railroads and Dr. J. E.
Stevenson who operated one of Davenport’s earliest drugstores. Both arrived in
the 1850s as Davenport entered its commercial and industrial ascendency. The
German American Heritage Center, beginning life as Germania Haus,
welcomed emigrants and settlers to the burgeoning city.
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Several buildings on tour reflect how their owners, while maintaining historical
integrity, are employing adaptive reuse to sustain and revitalize structures that
began as single family homes or multiple usage dwellings. These reuses hearken
back to the city’s earliest days when it was common for workers to live near or
in the places where they were employed.

Who lived in My House?

Tracking ownership of buildings over 140 years old can take a bit of detective
work.

That search is made more challenging because of changing street names and
numbers. City directories dating back to the mid 1850’s are an invaluable asset,
listing a resident’s occupation as well as residence. However, in the very early
days, many addresses lacked street numbers. The 1873 listing for our tour
home at 614 W. 5th provides a good example. In 1873, the listing for the home
of John Bahls reads “res 5th ns 3 e Gaines,” translating to “resides north side of
5th Street, 3rd door east of Gaines.” Even after a numbering system was
consistently used in directories, house numbers could change as additional
structures were built on adjacent lots.

City directories delineate the changing fortunes of Gold Coast properties and
their owners as well, as previously single family homes become listed as
multiple apartment numbers with unrelated occupants.

For the “residential sleuth,” Davenport’s downtown library’s Richardson-Sloane
Special Collections Center is a great starting place. It includes a collection of
city directories, atlases, cemetery listings, architectural and historical surveys,
land records, wills, vital records, criminal and civil court cases, a century and a
half of newspaper and legal microfilm, a portrait collection, as well as many
other resources to aid in searching past owners. Cemetery listings provide death
dates. That date pinpoints a year; a quick search of newspaper indexes can lead
to an obituary and a rich source of background information on past home
owners. Census tracks for Davenport often include handwritten street addresses
and detailed personal information as well as names of other nearby
neighborhood residents. Many state and Federal censuses are available on line
on free or paid sites. The Davenport Library subscribes to a database called
Ancestry Library which can be accessed from the Main or Fairmont library
branches which includes much of this information. It also subscribes to
Heritage Quest; a resource accessible from home for patrons with a Davenport
library card. The Center also maintains a rich online historical photographic
database available to the public at www.umvphotoarchive.org. For more
information, you can visit the Center’s website at www.gecmemory.org.

Who was Thomas McClelland?

Thomas McClelland (1831-1902) opened a sash and blind factory in
Davenport in 1855. He gained a reputation as a builder with construction of
Camp McClellan in 1861 and the Confederate Prison Camp on Arsenal Island
in 1863. He was not trained as an architect, but he used his experience and




construction guides to contribute a large number of buildings in 19th Century
Davenport.

His lasting legacy to the city was a structure now known as a “McClelland
Type” home. These two-story, three-bay, front-gabled dwellings still survive in
the Gold Coast and other old city neighborhoods. They are loosely based on the
earlier Greek Revival style but incorporate the proportions and some of the
decorative details newer Italianate style.
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614 West 5th Street — The John Bahls Home

Vernacular Italianate/Greek Revival Style
c. 1864, A McClelland-style home;
Builder/Architect, John H. Whittakeer

This is the earliest structure on today’s tour and was built for the tailor of
Davenport’s founder, Antoine LeClaire. John Bahls was born in Pomerania,
Germany. He came to the United States in 1853, settling in Davenport in 1854.
Bahls was a partner in several tailoring establishments, including

Thompson & Bahls and Wohlert & Bahls. He died in 1893.

When John moved to the 1900 block of 3rd Street about 1886, 614 became
home to Henry Struck, Jr., another German emigrant who came to America
with his parents at age 2. Henry Struck worked for his father at Struck & Son
Hardware located nearby at 325 West 2nd. He rose to prominence as City
Collector, Scott County Treasurer, and Secretary of the Davenport Savings
Bank. Henry went on to build The Castle on Ripley.

Hans Soenke was the home’s next resident, and Soenke family members
continued to live there through the first decades of the 20th Century. By 1920,
it was listed as two apartments in the city directories. Vacant from 1925-1935,
it was again put into use as apartments until restoration began in the 1990’s.



Fifth Street is the only section of the Gold Coast zoned commercial. The current
owners’ plans call for a second floor residence and a first floor coffee shop and
massage therapy/acupuncture/chiropractic clinic. Damage from a broken
water pipe earlier this year required a complete rehab of the downstairs
kitchen. That restoration is underway. The goal is to have the coffee shop and
clinic open by Christmas 2009.
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630 Warren Street — The Henry & Franciska Dohrmann Home

Italianate/“Davenport 2~1/2” Style
c 1868

This home sits on land that was first purchased by Davenport founder Antoine
LeClaire in 1840. The land was sold to Henry Dohrmann, or Dohrman as the
name is sometimes spelled, in 1867. Henry was an immigrant from Schleswig-
Holstein and a veteran of the Civil War. Arriving from St. Louis, Mr. Dohrmann
built the home you tour today about 1868. This is one of two buildings on tour
today that has the unusual distinction of being continually occupied by
members of the same family for more than 70 years.

He established himself as a hide and leather merchant in Davenport. He and his
first wife Franciska were the parents of twelve children. After Franciska’s death,
Henry married Bertha, with whom he had six or seven more children.

Mr. Dohrmann was an active member of the German Zion Lutheran Church
(demolished) that stood at Gaines and 8th Streets. He died in 1900. His wife
Bertha lived on in the house without plumbing or electricity until 1943.

This simple brick house has an interesting floor plan and takes advantage of its
hillside location to create a classic “Davenport 2-1/2,” a home with three
stories visible on one side and two stories on the others. Its original kitchen was
located at the ground (or basement) level on the south side of the house.
Cooking and eating took place downstairs in the walk out basement. The house
is of a pleasing simplicity of line inside and out. There were probably sun
porches on the south side of the house, typical for many Gold Coast homes from



all periods. The third floor includes three bedrooms, each with a walk-in closet,
which was a luxury when the home was built.

Today the home has been 90% restored and renovated both inside and out. The
current owner enjoys Arts & Crafts design and has incorporated elements of
that style such as natural stone, copper, and earth toned colors. Doing much of
the work himself, he has added a custom cut slate floor with radiant heat in the
entertaining kitchen as well as designed and installed stained glass dividers
between that room and what will be a next door bathroom.

Through the years, various owners compiled a history book with information
about this very well loved home. It is available for view during the tour.
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730 West 8th Street — The William H. Korn Home

Dutch Colonial/Craftsman Style
c 1915

The open front porch is an enjoyable place to spend a summer evening
greeting passing neighbors. Inside, high ceilings and hardwood floors
surround the dining room’s built in hutch. The living room features an
exposed beam ceiling, and a brick fireplace surrounded by leaded glass
book cases. A walk-in pantry makes this Craftsman style home a classic.
Another unique feature is the 2nd floor cantilevered room that may
originally have been a porch.

The four-bedroom home was built for William H. “Billy” Korn, one of
the sons of Henry Korn. Henry was an 1859 immigrant who served as a
Union baker during the Civil War and opened his first bakery in
Davenport in 1868, William worked as a baker during the Spanish
American War, and he and his brothers continued the family business,
originally located in the 300 block of Harrison Street. Various members
of the Korn family ran bakeries in the city for sixty-six years through
four generations.

The home’s longest tenants were Dr. and Mrs. F. O. Burk, beginning in
1923. Dr. Burk was a Swedish immigrant who practiced medicine in
Davenport from 1911 until his death in 1942. His widow lived in the
home until 1944.

The current owners have remodeled a second floor bathroom and are
preparing to remodel the kitchen to include a family breakfast nook.
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730-732 Gaines Street — The Jipp Home & Grocery

Italianate Style
c 1868/1878 Restrooms Available For
Today's Tour

Christian Jipp, an immigrant from Schleswig-Holstein, worked as a clerk at
various retail shops along the Mississippi riverfront from 1860 to 1867. In
1868, he built this store; it was one of the first retail businesses to progress up
the hill from the riverfront on the city’s west side. He and his wife Fanny and
their three children Ella, Rhoda and Meta, lived in the store for 10 years. In
1878, he built the attached house. A Jipp family member would be in residence
for almost 80 years.

The store was sold to new owners in the first decade of the 20th Century and
various grocers ran the store until 1958. After the sale, and Christian’s death in
1913, his three daughters continued to own and live in the home, dividing it
into two apartments. Two were teachers in the Davenport school system. By
1940, Rhoda Jipp, the last surviving member of the family, was living there as
owner along with a cousin. She died in 1945, the home continued to operate as
two apartments. In 1958, the grocery had become a Laundromat. By 1980, the
house portion of the structure was no longer inhabited. The entire structure
was abandoned in the early 1980’s. Restoration began in 2004 by Gateway
Redevelopment Group (GRG) after the building had become severely
deteriorated and was #1 on the city’s demolition list.
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Today, the building houses the Hamburg Historic District Resource Center, the
soon to be open Architectural Rescue Shop, and a 2nd floor apartment. The
Shop will sell architectural salvage to others restoring historic structures.
Proceeds fund the ongoing efforts of GRG, whose goal is to save other
abandoned buildings in the area. The Resource Center is the repository for
neighborhood historical archives and features wallpaper based on a 19th
Century pattern created by resident Duane Timm. Restoration to the 2nd floor
studio apartment was completed earlier in 2009; it includes original features as
well as salvaged items. The most of the staircase and windows are original to
the home. The original window trim was refinished with a crackle glaze. The
vintage pine kitchen cabinets and bathroom door were salvaged from a home
being taken down by St. Ambrose and were refinished prior to installation.
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417 West 7th Street — The Richard & Selma Haak Home
Colonial Revival Style
c 1924

Richard Haak was a contractor with Hass & Company when he built this
home in 1924. Richard was the son of Ferdinand Haak, one of
Davenport’s leading cigar manufacturers and was an executive with that
firm until it closed in the early 1920’s. The last location of the firm was
527 West 4th Street, now home to Tri-City Equipment Company.

The Colonial frame house is the second structure on this site. Richard
died in 1936. In 1938, the house became a duplex; Richard’s widow
Selma shared the home with her boarders until 1968. It was a duplex
when it was purchased by its current owner in 1976. Renovations to the
living room were completed in 1997 and to the kitchen in 2007.
Exterior renovations include terraced flower beds to enhance its street
entrance and a landscaped backyard deck and garden that create a
comfortable outdoor living space.
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116 E. 6th Street — The Kimball-Stevenson Home

Italianate Style
c 1871~1873

This classic brick Victorian is named for two of its most prominent residents.
The home is believed to have been built for Abel Kimball. Kimball arrived in
Davenport in 1856 as master mechanic for the Mississippi & Missouri line
when Iowa City was the western most point of the Iowa railroad line. The
financial panic of 1857 forced the M&M into bankruptcy; it was purchased by
the Chicago, Rock Island, and Pacific. Kimball worked for that company for
many decades, ultimately as its General Superintendent, until retirement in
about 1899 at age 77. He died in New Hampshire in 1906.

116 E. 6th was home to Kimball for only a few years. It was briefly owned by
Thomas McClelland, well-known for the popular 19th Century Davenport
“McClelland” style home. This ownership had led historians to believe it also
may have been built by him. A classic example of this style is today’s tour home
at 624 W. 6th Street.

16



MEYRIS COUGI CTIRAS 1

PAVESPORT DERECRe

:‘;:T;"}L”f_u‘sfi lacel Threshmg Manhme Wotls a rﬂdﬂdrf ¥

[ ep—

market. Thoir

[ — |

) fas beosing | i

"'1;‘"" Wist- | T [Dasier)

welatar of the |

dnmet JOHN 8. DAVIS,
I MARUPACTUSER OF THE FREVIUM

% we make the &

72| DEXTER THRESHING MACHINE

ade and obers | AND SEPARATOR,

ol pental ue :

pleasmre. As ]

apoct of theiz |

ciths,  Thalr

& Ebaral pol

sien, by pur

ny prompecous

denon of” thair,

2815 B
-un oy Jo jmeBy [eomenny pue Lxcywodeg

0 WESAR] [{) WNTNEes [wmanag [ missrmng predunn

el el Mome Powers Dexte’s s
T NATLBANE BAVLNPORT IOWA S ol R R0 e, |
Opital Stock, $100, Yoo,V Suples, $70, % T R R T O
LIII\LI;:! i:élik r-I.n}c- 3 . 3

ALFY® L v wad; yung wasnos sBegre u

34
H

E.
i

¥

i

;:
i

L-3

B

H
Fr
E

%

g

g %

.g ¥
o

“Dr

i

By 1874, Kimball was living one block east, and Dr. John E. Stevenson was
living at 116 E. 6th. He was a principal in the drugstore Stevenson & Carnahan
which opened its doors in 1851. Active the in the business and civic life of the
city, he was an early Vice President of the First National Bank and, for a time,
alderman for the 4th Ward. The drugstore Stevenson & Carnahan continued to
operate until a name change to Stevenson & Streeper in 1885.

Frank O. Davis, became the home’s occupant in 1892. He was
President/General Manager of John S. Davis & Sons, manufacturers of
threshing machines, a business located a few blocks south and east.

By 1909, the home’s tenant was Charles Dixon, and the city directories begin to
reflect changes in the social and business status of it residents. Charles Dixon, a
barber, a far cry from the Superintendents, Bank VPs, company presidents that
had occupied the home earlier. A few years later, Mary Dixon is listed as
occupant, offering “furnished rooms.” John McPartland and wife Bertha called
116 oth Street home from 1915~1925, again offering “furnished rooms.”

There is much anecdotal evidence from multiple sources that, around the time
of Prohibition, the home became a destination for those seeking “needle beer”
and other more lascivious pleasures. The large mirror in the hallway was
reputedly used by male visitors to inspect their escorts for the evening as they
descended the staircase.

Tenants of a more sober nature (based on occupations listed in the city
directory) are in residence beginning about 1940 and through the war years.
From 1950-1980, the building housed 7 to 9 apartments.
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The building was placed on the National Register of Historic Places in 1983. In
1985, it was purchased by lawyer Mike Liebbe, who embarked on a total
restoration. He was recognized for his work with a 1986 Historic Preservation
Achievement Award from the Scott County Historic Preservation Society.

The two first floor slate fireplaces, painted to look like marble, are original. The
woodwork, damaged after years of service, was meticulously faux grained to
resembled oak during the 1980’s restoration. The small sink in the hallway was
original to one of the upstairs rooms. In addition to law offices, the building
includes a two bedroom apartment on the second floor.

Marks on the front exterior brick facade are evidence of front porch sometime
in the home’s past. A hatchway in the attic ceiling might have led to a cupola or
widow’s walk accessed through the roof.
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712 West 2nd Street — The German American Heritage Center

High Victorian Commercial Architecture
ca. 1862/1877

Regular flours:
Tuesday thru Sunday, 1:00 — 4:00 pm; other times, by appointment.

The German American Heritage Center began life in 1862 as the William Tell
House, a “Gasthaus” or guest house, built to accommodate thousands of
immigrants who arrived in the area during the great migration after the Civil
War.

In 1868/69, German immigrant and Davenport manufacturer John Frederich
Miller purchased the hotel and operated it first as the Germania House, and in
1873 as the Miller Hotel with an accompanying restaurant, billiard parlor and
saloon. In 1906, it was renamed the Arcade Hotel and in 1917, the Henry
Blessing Boarding House.

In 1924, it was renamed the Standard Hotel, the name in use for the longest
period of time. The Standard closed in 1990.

In 1983 the building was listed on the National Register of Historic Places. In
1994, the German American Heritage Center was incorporated with
representatives from various local German-American, historical and
genealogical organizations.
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The group purchased the old hotel in 1995. From 1996-1999, the building
underwent restoration including a new roof, historically accurate windows,
repaired exterior walls, and restoration of the first floor interior.

The first floor exhibition space was opened to the public during the 2000
Maifest celebration. Rehab continued in 2001 with the restoration of the
storefronts. 2002 saw the opening of an exhibit focusing on the Turners, an
early German American cultural organization.

In 2004, work began on a new stairwell and elevator, allowing the opening of
second floor exhibition space in 2005.

The German American Heritage Center looks forward with great anticipation to
October 3rd & 4th, when it welcomes the public to the opening of its
permanent Exhibit “ The Immigrant Experience.” The exhibit progresses
through several interactive and intergenerational experiences from immigrants’
journey by sea, train and foot, to their final destination in the Davenport area,
and goes on to highlight their contributions to the region.
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Contributing te the quality of life
in the Quad Cities Community by supporting:

EDUCATION

Riverboat Development Authority
Rhythm City CasinoeHotel
“AWinning Combination”

CHECK OUT OUR WEE PAGE AT
www/riverboatauthority.com

The: HDA is a nonprofit arganization atfilabed with H)Tln Uity Casing
For mome information call 563373517

Grants limited to Quad Cldes nonproflt projects

JERRY KEIM
Owner/President
4661 - 44th St.
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CLEVE'S COLLISION CENTER

Auto Body Specialists
American & Imports
* Quality Body Repairs
* Certified Training
e Unit Body Specialists
» Skilled Technicians
* Since 1922

Ay, e Lifetime
' Guarantee
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330 W. 5TH STREET e DAVENPORT
563-324-0461

www.cleveautobody.com

THE POSTILLION

ELDER GROUP HOME (EGH)
iﬁ i ‘* STATE CERTIFIED
& 7 | 709 BROWN STREET, DAVENPORT

SUsAN & ALLAN HAYES
OWNERS/ OPERATORS
5633231 702
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German American Heritage
Center & Museum
GRAND OPENING WEEKEND OCTOBER 3 - 4,2009

View our photos, videos and more at www.gahc.org
712 West Second Street Davenport, lowa 52802 (563)322-8844

STATE FARM Rick Rathburn, Agent }f]‘ilo

( 3 4548 Brady Street
Davenport, IA 52806-4011 HOME
Bus 563-386-7740 HEALTH
rick.rathburn.b5ff@statefarm.com BUSINESS
24 Hour Good Neighbor Service®

INSURANCE
®

Featuring

After your enjoyable tour today, il]'llfﬂ ﬂﬂhﬂ'ﬂlﬁ
visit us in the Village of East QQQ
Davenport and present this ad for a b S O
FREE mini soap bar in one of l '
lowa Naturals most s
Monday-Saturday Cazwel Massey

10AM - 5PM popular scents Crabtree & Evelyn
2033 East 11th 5t Terra Nova

Davenport, 1A The Thymes
563.322.4096 siidiriary ol

Offer Expires 10/31/2000

YA YIAANY

McCormick Insulation Co.
3031 Hickory Grove Road
Davenport, IA 52804

Phil McCormick Ph (563) 388-9429
P.O. Box 2249 Mobile (563) 570-1095
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Buying or building in Davenport?

See what incentives and programs
the City has for you!

100 Homes Program
Get up to $15,000 to purchase and improve a property in the
100 Homes area of Davenport.

Davenport NOW

Collect cash back when you invest in Davenport by
constructing new property or making major renovations to
existing property

Urban Revitalization Tax Exemption

Receive tax benefits when you make improvements to your
property.

These are just a few of the programs available!

Call to 563-888-3380 to find out what programs are right
for you. You can also find more information by visiting us
online at www.cityofdavenportiowa.com

@ City of
Davenport
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WHY PAY GAS PRICES
TO TRAVEL SOMEWHERE EXOTIC?

Bring paradise to your own back yard! Call Aunt Rhodie's today.

LEAVE THE CLEANING TO US!
Ask about our Spring and Fall =
Landscaping Clean-up Services o

UNT RHOD[EY

* Decks, fencing, arbors, stone and block retaining walls
* Walkways, patios, permeable paving, outdoor kitchens, firepits
* Ponds, waterfalls, related gardens, rain gardens, prairies

oy iy g LANDscaPING

* Ground covers, perennials, trees, and shrubs & DESIGN STUDIO
2012 E. 11th Street » Davenport, lowa ® www.auntrhodies.com » 563.323.2840

SURCEISEIRCIE RSN Specializing in custom...

WINDOWS DOORS MOLDINGS

Windows, crowns, brackets and soffits were
\ replaced in this beautiful historic home.

Carver Custom Millworks
117 E. 17" Street, Milan, lllinois 61264 (across from Auto Acres on Rt. #92)

For more information or a FREE ESTIMATE contact
Butch Carver at 309-787-4616
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fine food and cocktails
2GS, Dnd SE E-s&mi.poal, Townz

you want ribs??

historic 1885 building, 2 story dinning room, large patio,
full cocktail bar,large wine selection, serving lunch & dinner

PORK BBQ BACK RIB DINNERS
half slab $12.69 : full slab $18.99

DINNERS SERYED WITH DINNER SALAD OR CUIP OF SOUP AND CHOICE OF [BAKED POTATO, CARLIC MASHED AFTER 4),
FRIEB, ONION RINGS, RICE, OR SEASONED VEGETABLE
WESTERN STYLE BAKED POTATO $.99 EXTRA : LOADED BAKED $.99 EXTRA

[
Reservations 3232-3911 1,: giPF i'g : '
www.s ppis.biz

open llam daily
CLOSED SUNDAYS

W. 2ND ST,

18 NOSIHYYH

W. RIVER DR.
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BASSETT&VOLLUM

I NC ORPORATETD

Vallpapers

est 'Gﬂu‘,om‘

phone 563-323-4077
VLV £V LV L £V OV VLV VoV LV VL L

Check out our work in the new Hamburg Historic District Resource Center
at The Jipp Home & Grocery, 730-732 Gaines Street.

When it comes to insurance...
The name to know is MOLYNEAUX.

Service and Products that only an
Independent agent can provide

Auto
Home

Business
Lfe OLYNEAU
Health Mlnsunauce

& FINANCIAL SERVICES

100 Kirkwood Blvd Davenport IA
Cormer of Kirkwood & Brady
www.molyneaux.com
563)324-1011
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|:|614 West 5th Street, The John Bahls Home

[ 630 Warren Street, The Henry & Franciska Dohrmann Home
[ ]730 West 8th Street, The William H. Korn Home

[ ]730-732 Gaines Street, The Christian Jipp Home & Grocery
| |417 West 7th Street, The Richard Haak Home

|:|116 East 6th Street, The Kimball-Stevenson House

| |712 West 2nd Street, The German American Heritage Center

For more information on the Gold Coast and Hamburg Historic District, visit our website at
www.davenporigoldcoast.com.




